1969

## **Myra K. Butler v. Marvin Jay Butler : Brief of Appellant**

### NATURE OF THE CASE

This is a petition of defendant for modification of a decree of divorce and for a ruling in contempt.

### DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

The court dismissed the petition of defendant except that the court modified the decree to allow defendant (a) to take his minor children as dependents on his income tax returns and (b) to delete plaintiff as a beneficiary of his family trust.

### RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Defendant and appellant requests an order directing the court below either to amend the decree of divorce as prayed in his petition or, in the alternative, to find the plaintiff in contempt.

**STATEMENT OF FACTS**

On October 17, 1967, the District Court entered a decree of divorce terminating the marriage of the parties who were then residents of Davis County, Utah. Defendant is a commercial pilot employed by Western Airlines and has since moved to San Mateo, California, a suburb of San Francisco, his base of operations. Plaintiff married one Joseph Seethaler on February 14, 1968 and now resides in Provo, Utah.

Under the decree of divorce, defendant was granted custody of his minor children for three months, June through August, of each year. The decree required that defendant give notice on or before May 1 of each year of his intention to exercise his right of custody and of the date on which he would take custody.

The children of the parties and their dates of birth are as follows:

|       |                   |
|-------|-------------------|
| Jeff  | July 30, 1946     |
| Julie | February 17, 1952 |
| Jon   | November 17, 1955 |
| Brett | July 11, 1961     |

The three last named children are minors.

From the date of the divorce until May 29, 1968, defendant visited his children and was visited by them on numerous occasions. The nature of his employment permitted him to provide transportation between Utah and California at minimum expense and discomfort. (R. 126-127)

On April 25, 1968, defendant delivered to plaintiff written notice dated April 20, 1968 of his intention to take

custody of the minor children on May 27, 1968 and requesting that he be allowed to pick up certain items of clothing and personal property on May 20, 1968. (Exhibit , R. 127-128)

Between April 25 and May 20, 1968, defendant had several telephone conversations with his children. His daughter, Julie, asked that he enroll her in summer school classes in English and driver's training, which he did. (R. 129) During this period, he received no indication that there would be any difficulty in obtaining custody of the children as provided in the decree.

On May 20, 1968, defendant went to plaintiff's residence in Provo for the purpose of picking up the requested items of clothing and personal property of the children. As a result of plaintiff's interference, defendant was unable to obtain the requested items, as the following testimony shows:

"Q. I see. Now did you go to Provo on May the 20th for the purpose of picking up these belongings?

A. I did.

Q. And what occurred when you arrived in Provo?

A. I drove to the house where they were living. I was driving a pickup truck. And I backed into their driveway. And my children came out the door.

They knew what I was there for. They came out the door, and I told them to bring their belongings.

My daughter, Julie, brought out her violin and a pasteboard box with some papers in it and a few scraps of sewing fabric, some miscellaneous items.

They brought two old bicycles. One that had previously belonged to John was of a size a little smaller than his and in total disrepair, and a bicycle that belonged to my daughter, and which also hasn't been used for several years.

Q. Did the children have new bicycles?

A. Yes. John and Bret had new bicycles.

Q. Who had purchased those bicycles?

A. I had. I gave Bret a new bicycle for his birthday, and about a week later he told me that his mother had provided him with a new bicycle. And it's my understanding that she claims having had no income whatsoever for that summer, and so I presume that inasmuch as I was providing her support that I had provided the bicycle for her.

Q. In any event, they had new bikes; Is that right,

A. That's true.

Q. But you didn't get them for that purpose? You didn't get them on May the 20th for the children?

A. No, no. No, I never did get those.

Q. Did you get the items requested on your notice?

A. No. The children came to me with these few things and I said: "Where's the rest of your belongings?"

And they told me their mother forbid them from bringing any other belongings.

And I said to Julie: "Will you please go and get the list and let's go over it?"

So she did. She went into the house and came out with the list. And it was very painful for her.

I asked her to go in and ask her mother about this or that, and she would go into the house—she went into the house two or three times. And the second time she came out in tears and I said: “Why are you crying?”

And she said: “This is so difficult. Mother won’t give me anything, and here you are to take them. And I don’t know what to do.”

And I comforted her. I told her that I loved her; there was no reason for her to have to go through this, and not to worry about it.

And my son, John, simply went into the house and disappeared. I didn’t see him any longer.

That’s all I got, and I left. (R. 130-31)

Defendant returned to California expecting to return to Provo on May 27 to assume custody of the children. On May 24, he received a telephone call from Julie and Jon who indicated that they didn’t want to come to California, that they would come for part of the summer but not for the entire summer. Defendant told the children that he would expect them to be ready to go with him as previously arranged and the conversation terminated with the understanding that he would call for them in Provo between eleven o’clock and noon on May 27. (R. 132-33)

On May 27, 1968, defendant went to plaintiff’s house in Provo to obtain custody of the children at the appointed hour. There was no one home although he remained at the house for some time. After repeated telephone calls from Provo and later from Salt Lake City, he reached Jon at

plaintiff's residence at seven-thirty in the evening. He instructed Jon to get his belongings together and to tell the other children to do likewise and that he would return to Provo within the hour to get them. Upon his return to Provo that evening, he found plaintiff's house dark. Although there were two cars in the driveway, no one answered the door. He attempted to telephone plaintiff's residence repeatedly until eleven o'clock without success, although he did receive a busy signal on one occasion. (R 134-35)

The next morning, May 28, he commenced calling plaintiff's residence at six-thirty, only to find the telephone busy. At seven o'clock he went to plaintiff's residence, concerning which he testified as follows:

Q. And what happened at 7:00 o'clock in the morning?

A. Little Bret came to the door, and I spoke to him and I—

Q. (interposing) How old is he at the time, by the way?

A. He was 6.

Q. All right. And you spoke to him and what?

A. I spoke to him, told him to get his things, and asked him where Julie and John were.

And he said he didn't know and that he would get his things, and he closed the door.

And then I waited for 15 minutes, and then I rang the bell again and a young man appeared at the door whom I had never seen before—a young man in his 20's, I judged.

And I asked him about Julie and John and he said: "They slept with friends last night."

And I said: "Do you know where they are?" And he said: "No."

And I said: "Do you know what friends?" And he said: "No."

And I said: "Did they stay at the same place or at separate places?" And he said: "At separate places."

And I said: "Did you take them there?" And he said: "No."

And I said: "You do know that they stayed at separate places, but you didn't take them there or you don't know where they are?" And he said: "That's right."

So I asked his name, and he said that it was Carl Seethaler. And he asked me mine. I told him my name and that I was the children's father and that I had come to get them. And he said: "I don't think they want to go."

And I said to him: "Well, that's a matter to be decided between them and me, and I've come to get them."

And he said: "That's your problem."

And I said: "Please bring their mother. I want to talk to her."

And he said: "No, I won't. She's asleep and I won't wake her."

And I said: "Please bring Bret to the door."

And he said: "I won't." And then he came out the door and seemed to go to his car, and left me standing on the front porch."

And in a moment he came back and asked me to move my car as it was blocking the driveway.

So I suggested to him that he might bring Bret to me while I moved my car, and he said: "Well, I'll tell him but that's all I'll do."

So I moved my car, and the young man left.

Q. Did Bret come to the door?

A. Then Bret came to the door.

Q. After the boy had left?

A. After the boy had driven away.

Q. All right.

A. Bret came to the door, and he looked at me in a rather pained way, and he said: "Daddy, I'll be here with my bag in a minute," and he disappeared.

I waited for a few more minutes on the porch and then I went back and sat in my car, and the only activity that I observed between that time and 8:00 o'clock in the morning was to see the young man return and disappear into the house.

Q. Carl Seethaler?

A. Carl Seethaler.

Q. Did Bret come back? Did Bret come?

A. No, Bret didn't come.

So at 8:00 o'clock I went back and rang the bell the doorbell. And Carl Seethaler came to the door and I said: "Is Bret ready yet?" And he said: "No."

I said: "Please bring him, because I have an airplane to catch."

And he said: "He told me that he doesn't want to go." And he closed the door in my face.

And I knocked on the door and I rang the bell several times, and there was no response, and I left. It was necessary for me to get back to work that day and I left." (R. 135-38)

During the ensuing week, defendant reached the children by telephone from California and told them that he would call for them on June 4. On that date, he was advised by his former attorney to enlist the assistance of the Provo City Police or the Utah County Sheriff in obtaining custody of the children. The Sheriff of Utah County refused to offer such assistance. (R. 138-40)

Defendant learned that plaintiff had moved but was unable to learn her new address. He therefore called the business establishment of plaintiff's husband, (Seethaler's, Inc. meat packing plant) where he was able to speak to his son, Jon, who, then twelve years of age, was working in the plant. He learned that plaintiff's residence was somewhere in the Indian Hills residential area of Provo. (R. 139-40)

Later in the morning of June 4, defendant went to Indian Hills where he drove around until he was able to identify plaintiff's residence by the cars parked in the driveway. He then secured the services of present counsel with whom he returned that evening at which time he was able to speak with Julie and learned that Jon and Bret had been taken to Heber City on a swimming trip by Carl Seethaler. (R. 141-42)

On the morning of June 5, defendant was able to obtain custody of Bret from the plaintiff and, over resistance and in spite of intimidation, succeeded in picking up Jon at the Seethaler plant where he was at work. Plaintiff refused, however, to provide other than a few items of old clothing for Bret and nothing for Jon. Defendant was unable to obtain custody of Julie. (R. 145-47)

Defendant took Jon and Bret to Salt Lake City where he purchased adequate clothing for them and then to the home of his brother in Ogden to spend the night before leaving for California. During the night, Jon called his mother, who instructed him to meet her at a certain intersection in Ogden. She and Mr. Seethaler then drove to Ogden and took Jon back to Provo, all without defendant's knowledge or consent. (R. 148-51)

On June 6, with the aid of counsel and the Provo City Police, defendant, after much difficulty, was able to again obtain custody of Jon who had returned to work at the Seethaler plant. (R. 150-54) Defendant then returned to California where he and the two boys had a pleasant and enjoyable summer together. (R. 154-56) After returning the boys to Provo at the end of the summer, defendant had a five-day visit with all three children at Flaming Gorge, Wyoming. The relationship between the defendant and his children is one of love and affection and was such at the end of the summer. (R. 157)

In view of the conduct of plaintiff as set forth above, defendant in September filed his petition requesting that he be given full custody of the children, or, alternatively, that sanctions be imposed adequate to secure defendant's rights under the decree. At the hearing of the petition,

defendant sought to introduce testimony of subsequent and continuing conduct of plaintiff in violation of the terms of the decree. The court refused to admit such testimony and refused to allow amendment of the petition to re-date it as of the date of the hearing. Defendant testified, however, that plaintiff had embarked upon a continuing course of conduct having as its objective the alienation of his children's affection. (R. 160-62)

The only evidence in this case was the testimony of the defendant, which was unrefuted. At the close of defendant's case, plaintiff moved to dismiss on the ground that defendant had failed to state a cause of action. With the exception of two minor modifications to the decree (allowing defendant to claim the children as deductions for tax purposes and to delete plaintiff as a beneficiary of his family trust), plaintiff's motion was granted.

## **ARGUMENT**

### **POINT I**

#### **THE COURT ERRED IN REFUSING TO GRANT DEFENDANT'S MOTION FOR CHANGE OF VENUE.**

In connection with his petition, defendant moved for a change of venue to the Fourth Judicial District for Utah County where plaintiff and the children reside. The governing law is Section 78-13-7 Utah Code Annotated (1953) which provides that venue in such actions must be "in the county in which the cause of action arises, or in the county in which any defendant resides at the commencement of the action." Although Mr. Butler is nominally the defendant and Mrs. Seethaler the plaintiff, it is clear that Mr. Butler

stands in the position of a plaintiff bringing an action against Mrs. Seethaler for breach of the terms of the decree and of the settlement agreement. The cause of action arose by reason of acts performed by Mrs. Seethaler in Utah Utah County.

By either standard, residence of "defendant" or county in which the cause of action arose, venue was proper only in Utah County, and the denial of defendant's motion for change of venue was in error.

A second and more persuasive reason for granting the defendant's motion for change of venue was the fact that it was a matter of convenience to the court and litigants to have the matter heard in Utah County rather in Davis County. All of the witnesses reside in Utah County, counsel for one of the parties resides in Utah County, the defendant was a resident of Utah County, the cause for complaint arose in Utah County, and the Provo Court is not substantially further in time and distance for counsel for the plaintiff. As a matter of orderly administration of the file and the availability of prompt relief, Utah County was the logical county to consider the petition of defendant. Section 78-13-9(3) Utah Code Annotated (1953) provides that, "when the convenience of witnesses and the ends of justice would be promoted by the change," the court may grant a change of venue.

It seems to the defendant that all of the reasons necessary for a change of venue existed in this case and were, in fact, compelling upon the court. The subsequent circumstances of this case, involving difficulty in getting to court and having the matter disposed of quickly and effectively, demonstrated the merits of defendant's request for a change

of venue. The court's failure to do so was an abuse of discretion.

## POINT II

### THE COURT ERRED IN EXCLUDING AS HEARSAY CERTAIN TESTIMONY OFFERED BY DEFENDANT.

At several points in the course of the hearing, defendant offered testimony as to conversations between defendant and his children for the purpose of showing that the children had been influenced by the mother in their decision not to go with defendant. Defendant also offered testimony as to statements by Joe, Al and Carl Seethaler to show their attempts to intimidate defendant and obstruct him in his lawful object of taking custody of his children. Most of such testimony was excluded as hearsay. (R. 142-45, 147-48, 1151-53) In excluding this testimony the court was in error.

It is widely recognized that in the interests of the children the usual prohibition against hearsay evidence must be relaxed in child custody cases.

"It has many times been held that technical rules of practice and pleading are of little importance in determining issues concerning the custody of children. It is not only the right but the duty of the trial court to ascertain any and all facts, and make such investigations as, in his judgement, will assist him in reaching a proper conclusion as to the problems surrounding their custody to the end that he may determine the person who is best qualified and most suitable to furnish the proper environments and home in which they are to live." *Conley v. St. Jaques*, 110 S.W. 2d 1238

(Tex. Civ. App. 1937), citing *Williams v. Guynes*, 97 S.W. 2d 988 (Tex. Civ. App. 1936); cf. Annotation, "Consideration of Investigations by Welfare Agency or the Like in Making or Modifying Award as Between Parents of Custody of Children," 35 A.L.R. 2d 629 (1954).

The courts have been willing, for example, to permit the judge in a custody proceeding to interview the child in chambers and to base his award of custody in whole or in part upon such interview. Such a case is *Oakes v. Oakes*, 45 Ill. App. 2d 387, 195 N.E. 2d 840, 99A.L.R. 2d 949 (1964) in which the court observed,

"To assume or hope that these proceedings are or can be molded in the character of a normal civil suit is naive and renders a disservice to the children who are the victims of this type of litigation." 99 A.L.R. 2d 953.

Thus in *Callen v. Gill*, 7 N.J. 312, 81 A.2d 495 (1951), where objection was made in a child custody case to testimony as to conversations with the child as hearsay, the court observed:

"The rules of evidence are somewhat relaxed in trials having to do with a determination of custody of an infant where it is necessary to learn of the child's psychology and preferences. Therefore, it is sometimes pertinent to bring to the court's knowledge the temperament, disposition and reactions of the child by testimony that borders upon hearsay in that it embraces a recital of the child's remarks." 81 A.2d 498.

The following text authority is also suggestive of an exception to the hearsay rule which would allow in evidence

not only hearsay evidence of statements by the children in this case but also statements by the Seethalers.

“Statements may be original circumstantial evidence of facts in issue, and are then admissible. They are admissible because the fact of their making throws light upon the question of the truth or falsity of the disputed facts; not because they state anything in regard to the existence or non-existence of such facts, but because they in some way illustrate an attitude or state of mind or other evidential fact from which the main fact may be inferred. It will thus be noted that declarations, in this sense, are not hearsay, except in a limited sense.” McKelvey, Evidence. Section 208 (1944).

It is the general rule in Utah as elsewhere that hearsay evidence will be admitted where the words are offered not as being true but only as having been uttered.

In *Lake Shore Motor Coach Lines, Inc. v. Welling*, 9 Utah 2d 114, 339 P.2d 1011 (1959), defendant's testimony in support of his application for expanded direct service between Ogden and the Salt Lake City Airport was “based upon his observations of the activities of others and in part upon their requests for and statements about desiring such service.” In upholding an order of the Public Service Commission based upon this testimony, the court held that such testimony was not hearsay since it “did not purport to assure the truth of the statements but was a report about the conduct of people, including some of their verbal acts, as observed by him.” 330 P.2d 1014.

In *Hawkins v. Perry*, 123 Utah 16, 253 P.2d 372 (1953), the Supreme Court held that it was proper to admit into evidence testimony that the witness had heard the purchaser

of property promise that he would take it in his own name until plaintiff became of age at which time it would be turned over to plaintiff on the issue of whether a constructive trust in favor of plaintiff should be imposed upon the property. In arriving at its conclusion, the Court quoted with approval the following language from Wigmore:

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