Brigham Young University Law School

BYU Law Digital Commons

Utah Supreme Court Briefs (1965 –)

1969

Myra K. Butler v. Marvin Jay Butler: Brief of Respondent

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

THE PROPRIETY OF THE AWARD OF ATTORNEY'S FEES.

A reasonable attorney's fee may be awarded a wife who contests a modification petition where the custody of children is involved. Anderson v. Anderson, 13 U. 2d 36, 368 P.2d 264. The Supreme Court may determine whether additional counsel fees should be allowed, and may allow costs of appeal to appellant, such as filing fees, printing costs and the like. Dahlberg v. Dahlberg, 77 U. 157, 292 P. 214. The allowance of alimony and expenses of divorce trial, including attorney's fees, are largely matters within the discretion of the court which tries the case. Burtt v. Burtt, 59 U. 457, 204 P. 91. Even where the District Court had no jurisdiction of status of marriage between parties to husband's divorce action because of noncompliance with residence requirement, it could nevertheless award to the wife temporary alimony, expenses of suit and attorney's fees, the allowance and the amount thereof being largely within the sound discretion of the trial court. Weiss v. Weiss, 111 U. 353, 179 P.2d 1005.

In the instant matter, plaintiff in her answer to defendant's petition, alleged that she had been required to employ counsel in the defense thereof and that she should be entitled to reasonable attorney's fees to be paid by the defendant to her for the use and benefit of her attorneys herein. Defendant's answer is not made a part of the

record on appeal but was referred to in the opening statements of counsel (Rep. Tr. 13). Rule 75 (h), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, permits this court on a proper suggestion or of its own initiative to require the record to be supplemented. We doubt, however, that counsel will disagree with the fact that the plaintiff filed an answer to the petition and prayed for attorney's fees as indicated.

In mitigation of our failure to file a designation of the record, defendant's designation did not include the complete record and he did not serve a statement of the points on which he intended to rely on the appeal, all as required by $Rule\ 75(b)$. If a statement of points had been made, it would have served as a springboard for the respondent's designation of the record as contemplated by $Rule\ 75(a)$. What we have said with reference to the answer filed by the plaintiff to defendant's petition applies equally to the objections that were filed to the motion for change of venue, which objections are not made a part of the file on the appeal not having been included in defendant's designation.

Defendant in his brief, in light of the present record on appeal, casts some sort of a cloud upon the propriety of attorney's fees when he says on page 20 that "Unaccountably, this request was granted by the trial court." Assuming attorney's fees to be proper in this type of an action, we subscribe to the previous expressions of this court and to the citations that defendant makes with reference to the subject that in the absence of proof or of

a stipulation, attorney's fees may not be awarded. The objection made by defendant at the time of trial as to attorney's fees was that they were not proper in matters of this kind.

Plaintiff's counsel proposed that if he were sworn and testified that he would say that \$750.00 is a reasonable fee and called attention to the time spent in attendance at the taking by defendant of six depositions which included the three children of the parties and Mr. Seethaler, the present husband of the plaintiff, the time consumed in the preparation of the pleadings, resisting the motion for change of venue and the trial of the instant matter. In response, the following occurred:

THE COURT: Do you have anything that you want to say, Mr. Howard?

MR HOWARD: Well, Your Honor, there is nothing more important to the lawyer than the payment of his attorney's fees, and I don't oppose attorney's fees, per se. I am in favor of the payment of fees.

But I do take this position: You're not entitled to attorney's fees after the divorce automatically, and you're certainly not entitled to attorney's fees to defend a matter that's created by your own conduct. And I've got some authorities on it and it's— * * * But the thing I'm trying to say is that we're forced into this court because she deprives us of our rights of custody, and so we come into court asking for relief.

That's the only reason we came. That's the primary reason we came.

And then she says: "My gosh, I had to come to court to defend it, so he ought to pay me attorney's fees.

Now that's like heaping insult onto injury. That just isn't fair either.

And we're here because she wouldn't do what the decree said she should do. And I think there ought to be sanctions imposed.

MR GUSTIN: I don't think there is any evidence as to that effect.

MR HOWARD: Well, all of the evidence is to that effect. And I have another brief on that subject, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Well, I think I would award \$600.00 for this number of depositions.

MR. HOWARD: Then I have one other authority to submit to you, Your Honor. And if you will just let me have a moment, I will tell you about that.

And I don't think the court can grant attorney's fees on the basis of the evidence. But I would submit it.

THE COURT: Well, I'll grant \$600.00.

MR HOWARD: All right (Rep. Tr. 83-84).

From the foregoing, it is fair to assume, we believe, that counsel was in agreement on the fee as fixed by the court but in disagreement as to the propriety of the same.

POINT II.

THE RULING ON THE MOTION FOR CHANGE OF VENUE IS NOT PROPERLY BEFORE THE COURT, BUT IN ANY EVENT THE VENUE REMAINS IN DAVIS COUNTY AND DEFENDANT IS NOT PREJUDICED THEREBY.

Both parties were residents of Davis County at the time of the divorce. The first paragraph of defendant's petition alleges the divorce by action of the Second Judicial District Court in and for Davis County on the 17th day of October, 1967 (R.6). There is no question concerning jurisdiction in the divorce action. Section 30-3-5, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, prior to the 1969 amendment provides in part:

"Such subsequent changes or new orders may be made by the court with respect to the disposal of the children or the distribution of property as shall be reasonable and proper."

There is a continuing jurisdiction of the court that is inherent in the within proceeding and this, we believe, to be the rule announced by this court in *Cody v. Cody*, 47 U. 456, 154 P. 952; *Bott v. Bott*, 20 U.2d 329, 437 P.2d 684 and *Anderson v. Anderson*, 18 U.2d 89, 416 P.2d 308.

Even though the plaintiff and the minor children of the parties are now residing in Utah County and while the defendant now resides outside of the State of Utah, once the jurisdiction of the Davis County District Court attached by the filing of the divorce action, there is no statutory or other right for either party to move for a change of venue. The plaintiff is not asking for a change of venue and so far as the convenience of the parties is concerned, the defendant who resides in California is not inconvenienced and there is nothing to indicate prejudice on his part as between having the cause heard in Utah County or in Davis County. Judge Cowley, as an individual judge, was a stranger to the decree as entered by Judge Swan in the Davis County District Court. Furthermore, the notice of appeal dated May 27, 1969 did not refer to the Order denying the motion for change of venue entered November 30, 1968. There should be no time or space wasted on this facet of the appeal.

POINT III.

HEARSAY EVIDENCE WAS PROPERLY EXCLUDED.

Examples of the rulings and of the type of evidence attempted to be adduced by hearsay are the following:

- Q. In any event, were you able to get your children that night?
 - A. No, I was not.

But I told my daughter Julie that-

MR. GUSTIN: (interposing) I object to that on the grounds it's hearsay.

THE COURT: Well, I'll sustain the objection. (Rep. Tr. 42)

Q. (by Mr. Howard) You had a conversation with Julie at this time.

Were you able to get any of your children as a result of this conversation?

A. Not on that occasion.

And Ladvised them that—

MR. GUSTIN: (interposing) Now just a minute,

We object—

A. (continuing) — I would be by the next morning to pick them up.

THE COURT: Well, you can tell us about the next morning. I'll sustain the objection to the answer. I don't think it was responsive even, was it? You hadn't asked your question?

MR. HOWARD: No. (Rep. Tr. 45)

And I said: "That may be, but I want to see him and I want to see him now."

So Joe disappeared, and in a moment he came back and he said to me, and indicated an office door—

MR. GUSTIN: (interposing) Object to that on the grounds it's hearsay.

THE COURT: I'll sustain the objection. (Rep. Tr. 47)

Q. And what did you say to John?

MR. GUSTIN: I object to that on the grounds it's hearsay.

A. I told John that—

THE COURT: (interposing) I'll sustain the objection. (Rep. Tr. 47)

The foregoing do not come within the category of exceptions to the hearsay rule or the portion attributed by defendant to Webb v. Webb, 116 U. 155, 209 P.2d 201, or to Sine v. Harper, 118 U. 425, 222 P.2d 571. Actually

the witness was attempting to state what he had said to built and Mr. Seethaler.

Mr. Seethaler and the children were in court. While they were excluded from the courtroom at the request of the defendant, they were nevertheless available as witnesses. Their depositions had been taken by the defendant. Jones on Evidence, Fifth Edition, Vol. 1, Sec. 231, p. 444 states the rule that we believe is applicable:

"It has been broadly stated that the best evidence that is obtainable under the circumstances of the case must be adduced to prove any disputed fact."

It is interesting to observe in the instant record the following:

THE COURT: I have just been trying to pass upon evidence here.

MR. HOWARD: Well, I acknowledge that, Your Honor, and I don't think—

THE COURT: (interposing) According to what you said, you haven't acknowledged that. What you're trying to say is that I'm kind of crooked.

MR. HOWARD: No, I'm not. I didn't mean to say that at all. But I don't think the evidence is that shallow. I think the evidence is quite deep.

I put all of the evidence I've got. This man only knows what happened, and he's told about it. And I didn't mean to be personal about it. (Rep. Tr. 84-85.

The foregoing, in light of the presence of the children and Mr. and Mrs. Seethaler, the latter who could be called

as an adverse witness, makes appropriate the following language from *Jones on Evidence*, Fifth Edition, Vol. 1, Sec. 27, pps. 59-60, to wit:

"There is a recognized legal presumption that a party will produce evidence which is favorable to him if such evidence exists and is available. And the mere withholding or failing to produce material evidence which is available and would, in the circumstances of the case, be expected to be produced, gives rise to a natural inference—less forceful than that arising from the destruction, fabrication or suppression of evidence in which other parties have a legal interest but constantly acted upon by the courts—that such evidence is held back because it would be unfavorable or adverse to the party withholding it. It is pertinent to note that the inference in question is not ordinarily to be accorded weight as substantive proof, but has persuasive value as discounting the credibility of the claim of the party who has withheld the evidence." (Emphasis added).

POINT IV.

THERE WAS NO SUFFICIENT SHOWING OF CONTEMPT UPON THE PART OF THE PLAINTIFF.

The notice (Exhibit 3) stated that the defendant could pick up his children on May 27. May 20th was on a Monday and the defendant testified:

- Q. Now did you get a communication from them later on in that week?
 - A. Yes.
- Q. When did you next hear from the children?

- A. Friday night. Julie and John called me on the telephone and told me they didn't want to come.
 - Q. And what, in substance, did they say?
- A. Well, Julie indicated that she might like to come part of the summer, but she didn't want to spend the entire summer, and that she wanted to go to summer camp, and she had boy friends, and she had her friends, and she felt it would be in a strange place, and that she would rather not come and spend the entire summer. In fact, she indicated she didn't want to come.

Now I asked John what his reasons were, and he was very vague. He didn't — he didn't really give any concrete reasons. I did, however, discover later what one of his reasons were. (Rep. Tr. 32).

When defendant arrived in Provo on May 27 for the purpose of obtaining the children, he went to the Seetlader residence. There was no indication of any activity at the property. There were no cars in the driveway and nobody answered the door. There was no one there (Rep. Tr. 33-34). Defendant then went to Salt Lake and in the evening of that day talked to his son John by telephone. "I told him that I was coming to get him and to be ready. He said he didn't want to go." (Rep. Tr. 34).

In the interim between May 27 and June 5, defendant met Carl Seethaler at the Seethaler home who told him that Julie and John had slept with friends the previous night at separate places. Carl said "I don't think they want to go" in answer to the statement of the defendant that he was the children's father and that he had

come to get them. The defendant then said, "Well, that's a matter to be decided between them and me, and I've come to get them." (Rep. Tr. 36).

On June 4 defendant went to the Seethaler plant after consultation with his attorney (Rep. Tr. 38-40) and was told that John was not there; that his mother had come and taken him (Rep. Tr. 41). He then went to the Secthaler residence and told Mrs. Seethaler that he had come to get the children "and she said nothing." She disappeared behind the door and in a short time Julie came to the door and told defendant that John and Brett were not there and that they had been taken to Heber City swimming by Carl Seethaler. He then talked with Julie for about an hour and a half in the presence of his counsel (Rep. Tr. 42). It was the next morning, June 5, that Mrs. Seethaler told defendant that Julie is not going and that John was at the Seethaler plant (Rep. Tr. 46). It was that day that defendant got Brett and John, the latter after the traumatic experience at the Seethaler plant involving the Police Department and the Juvenile Court (Rep. Tr. 46-54).

Defendant had the boys for the remainder of the summer but not Julie. The boys were taken on a fishing trip to Alaska and they had a good time in the company of their father, interrupted only by defendant's work schedule (Rep. Tr. 54-56). At the conclusion of the summer and around August 23, defendant picked Julie up and took her and the two boys to a gathering of defendant's family in Wyoming, a trip that lasted about five days.

The relationship was good between defendant and his children and he had no reason to think that they did not have affection for him (Rep. Tr. 57).

On September 27 defendant had a telephone conversation with Julie and inquired as to where she was on the previous weekend and was informed that she was in Salt Lake City at a girl friend's house and had returned the following day in the automobile "of some boy." Defendant had intended to visit with Julie on the previous weekend but had not been able to.

Defendant made arrangements with Julie to visit him on the 4th, 5th and 6th of October and made arrangements to have an airline pass waiting for her at the airport which would take her to San Francisco. Julie was told what she should bring in the way of clothing and she expressed an interest in the visit. The plane was to depart from Salt Lake City at 6:10 p.m. and around 4:30 p.m. in the afternoon of that day Julie called and said that she was not coming because she didn't have any way to get to the airport; that her mother would not bring her and had indicated to her that she didn't have to do the defendant the favor of bringing Julie to the airport. The defendant then instructed Julie to go by bus from Provo to Salt Lake and determined that Julie wanted to do so (Rep. Tr. 58-60).

At this point, the objection was made and sustained preventing defendant from going into matters subsequent to the filing of his petition, which petition was filed September 10, 1968 (Rep. Tr. 61). At the time of the hearing

Julie was 17 years of age, a junior in high school at $P_{\text{Tov}_{0_i}}$ and John was 14 years of age (Rep. Tr. 65).

Defendant expressed himself as being critical of the mother's approach to the children, thinking that she was very permissive with the daughter Julie and referred to the incident about Julie being taken to Salt Lake City and left over the weekend unsupervised, to come home "with some boy." The defendant stated that the mother didn't know who Julie was really going to ride home with and that she did not know what kind of a driver the boy was. The defendant posed a question as to whether the mother knew exactly where the girl was overnight, where she actually went, and who she was with during the evening:

"I've gone there at times when the daughter wasn't there and was told that she didn't know where the girl was, or that the girl was at school, or that she might be at some game, or she might be at some ball game.

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